

Composition for Non-Majors MUTH 46500 Fall 2021

Location: JJWCM 2317

Class days/time: Arranged directly with instructor

Instructor: Dr. Evis Sammoutis I Office: JJWCM 2317

Phone: (607) 274-3709. I E-mail: esammoutis@ithaca.edu Office Hours: Tue: 09:45 – 10:45 Wed 09:00 – 10:00 - by appointment

Recommended Reference Materials

A list of materials on contemporary/extended techniques is available from the instructor. A recommended listening list and other composition resources is available at http://faculty.ithaca.edu/esammoutis/docs/

Course description

Study and application of key compositional techniques for coherent expression in creative musical work. Exploration of key works from the repertoire through attendance of weekly composition seminars and development of an individual plan of study under the guidance and supervision of the instructor. Composition of original works for a variety of instrumental and vocal combinations and/or electronics.

Student Learning Outcomes

Upon successful completion of this course, students will be able to:

- Recognize key compositional techniques and styles
- Discuss the evolution of key compositional techniques
- Apply several taught techniques in their own work that demonstrate idiomatic writing
- Analyze seminal works from the contemporary repertoire
- Compose at least 5 minutes of approved music (depending on the scope and instrumentation of pieces)

Course activities

Compositional work, ancillary exercises on specific techniques, listening and analysis of works from the literature. Students are required to keep a weekly journal of compositional activities and be prepared to discuss at least one work from the recommended listening list at each weekly meeting. At each lesson students are expected to bring with them:

- 1) A printed copy of the piece they are working on (in case they don't have a handwritten score). Optionally, the students can also email an electronic copy of the piece they are working on in PDF or XML format. In case students are working on a handwritten score, then the score must be scanned using a high quality/definition format.
- 2) The journal of the weekly composition activities, detailing how they engaged with the points discussed at the previous week's meeting and a synopsis of their compositional activities for the whole week. The journal should include a list of works they listened to that week.
- 3) The **previous week's printed or electronic copy** of the music they were working on with instructor's comments to discuss their progress and trace the changes.

Attendance policies

Attendance is mandatory for all class sessions and **seminars (Tuesdays 1:10-2:00).** Students are responsible for making up the missed work.

Grade will be negatively affected after two absences. Failure to attend 4 combined meetings (composition seminars and composition lessons) could result in one letter grade drop from the final grade (minus 10% of the final grade). For example, A will become B and B+ will become C+ etc. The student is expected to show up for his/her weekly lesson at the arranged day and time. There will be no changes to this arranged time once the semester begins. Make-up lessons will be offered under special circumstances only (student's illness or family emergency, instructor's unavailability due to travel) and are subject to instructor's discretion.

Lesson exchanges for specific events

Please note that there will be lesson exchanges for the following programs / series:

Karel Husa Visiting Professor of Composition Series (14 - 17 September 2021): No private lessons for Week 4 (13 November onward)

Composition Immersion Day (13 November 2021): No private lessons for Week 13 (15 November onward)

Students are required to participate in the activities of these programs.

Assignments

It is expected from the student to complete all composition projects by the final exam date or the last day of classes. Assignments must be emailed on time. Late assignments will be penalized 20%. Exceptions apply to works-in-progress.

The use of a computer notation program such as Finale or Sibelius is recommended but not required. Manuscript scores may be written in pencil and must be clearly legible. They must be scanned and sent to the instructor using high quality scanner settings.

If a student wants to request an extension, they must request said extension by e-mail, at least 24 hours in advance of the project's due date. A request does not guarantee an extension. Extensions will be granted based on the discretion of instructor. If an extension is granted the project's grade will drop by a 1/3 of a grade every calendar day after the original due date. For example:

If a project is due on Monday, at 12:00 p.m., any project submitted at 12:01 p.m. will be docked a third of a grade until Tuesday, at 11:59 a.m. If the project is turned in on Tuesday at 12:00 p.m. it will be docked by two-thirds of a grade.

Composition Premieres Concert

All composition majors are required to present at least one work in one of the Composition Premieres Concert each semester. **This, however, does not apply to students taking MUTH46500**. A student taking this course can only have a piece at a Composition Premieres concert with instructor's approval.

Entrepreneurship

The instructor encourages students to seek opportunities to expose their work. Entrepreneurial activities for an emerging composer include but are not limited to submitting scores to off-campus performers/ensembles, festivals, calls-for-scores and competitions; engaging in interdisciplinary collaborative projects and starting/maintaining a composer's website. **Students are required to submit a list of semester entrepreneurial activities by Monday of finals week, via e-mail.**

Grading	
Composition projects/exercises	80%
Attendance	10%
Listening Quizzes	5%
Entrepreneurship (with proof of entrepreneurial activities):	5%

Basis for determining grade

Grading is based on effective demonstration of:

- 1) Technique, evidenced by balanced formal architecture, excellent presentation of score (accurate, clear and legible notation to professional standards), clear and effective use of dynamics, articulation, expression markings, organization of pitch, rhythmical elements as well as texture.
- 2) Creative/artistic quality, evidenced through well-developed material that is stylistically cohesive, with excellent harmonic control. Compositions must demonstrate imagination, appropriateness of instruments or voicings (where applicable) and idiomatic writing. Text (where applicable) must be set convincingly, with attention to natural word stress and text painting.
- 3) Effective use of each semester's taught techniques and material.

Grading System

The acceptable grades and corresponding points for grade point average (GPA) calculations are as follows. All grades except P, I, S, W, NG and DG are used in calculating a student's GPA. For more information on Credit and Grade Information, please visit this page:

https://catalog.ithaca.edu/undergrad/academic-information/credit-grade

Grade	Points	Grade	Points
Α	4.00	С	2.00
A-	3.70	C-	1.70
B+	3.30	D+	1.30
В	3.00	D	1.00
B-	2.70	D-	0.70
C+	2.30	F	0.00

E-mail Communication

Students are strongly advised to check their IC e-mail account regularly. The instructor will only send e-mail communications to IC accounts.

Academic Dishonesty/Plagiarism

All assignments for this class should be original compositions. Ithaca College sets very high standards for academic integrity that have helped shape the quality of its offered degrees. Students are strongly advised to familiarize themselves with the Ithaca College Policy Manual, Vol. VII "Pertaining to the Student Community," including reviewing the "Student Conduct Code." Any violations of academic honor and honesty will not be tolerated in this course under any circumstances. For policies regarding fair use/copyright and plagiarism, the Ithaca College Policy Manual states: "Whether intended or not, plagiarism is a serious offense against academic honesty. Under any circumstances, it is deceitful to represent as one's own work, writing or ideas that belong to another person. Students should be aware of how this offense is defined. Plagiarism is the unacknowledged use of someone else's

published or unpublished ideas, whether this use consists of directly quoted material or paraphrased ideas."

Academic Advising Center

You can contact the Advising Center to discuss registration questions, review degree requirements, talk about ICC requirements, discuss adding or changing majors or minors, receive help with study skills and strategies, and get help with any other academic advising related questions. You may also email advisingcenter@ithaca.edu with your advising questions. To schedule an appointment, go to: https://www.ithaca.edu/academic-advising-center.

Writing Center

The Writing Center aims to help students from all disciplines, backgrounds, and experiences to develop greater independence as writers. We are committed to helping students see writing as central to critical and creative thinking.

Appointments can be made at https://ithaca.mywconline.com, which is also linked on the https://apps.ithaca.edu page. During business hours, you can message Ithaca College Writing Center on Google Hangouts or email ithacacollegewritingcenter@gmail.com to get real-time assistance or drop-in (subject to tutor availability).

Title IX

Title IX is a federal act mandating that educational institutions receiving federal funding must provide sex and gender equity. All students thus have the right to a campus atmosphere free of sexual harassment, sexual violence, and gender discrimination.

Please note that if you disclose an experience related to sexual misconduct (including sexual assault, dating violence, and/or stalking, sexual harassment or sex-based discrimination), then your professor can inform Linda Koenig, the Title IX Coordinator, Ikoenig@ithaca.edu, of all relevant information, including your name. The college will take initial steps to address the incident(s), protect and support those directly affected, and enhance the safety of our community. The Title IX Coordinator will work with you to determine the best way to proceed. Information shared in class assignments, class discussions, and at public events do not constitute an official disclosure, and faculty and staff do not have to report these to the Title IX Coordinator. Faculty and staff should be sure that access to campus and community resources related to sexual misconduct are available to students in the case these subjects do arise. Any other disclosure to faculty and staff needs to be reported to the Title IX Coordinator. To make a report of sexual assault, sexual harassment or gender discrimination, please contact Linda Koenig, Title IX Coordinator; Ikoenig@ithaca.edu 607-274-7761. Please visit www.ithaca.edu/share for more information.

Disability

In compliance with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Americans with Disabilities Act, reasonable accommodation will be provided to students with documented disabilities on a case-by-case basis. Students must register with the Office of Academic Support Services and provide appropriate documentation to the college before any academic adjustment will be provided. Please note that **accommodations are not retroactive**, so timely contact with Student Accessibility Services is encouraged. Students who wish to meet with an SAS specialist can email **sas@ithaca.edu** to schedule an appointment.

Mental Health/Counseling

Diminished mental health, including significant stress, mood changes, excessive worry, or problems with eating and/or sleeping, can interfere with optimal academic performance. The source of symptoms might be strictly related to your course work; if so, please speak with me. However, problems with relationships, family worries, loss, or a personal struggle or crisis can also contribute to decreased academic performance.

Ithaca College provides a Counseling Center to support the academic success of students. Counseling and Psychological Services (CAPS) provides cost-free services to help you manage personal challenges that threaten your well-being.

The Ithaca College Center for Counseling and Psychological Services (CAPS) promotes and fosters the academic, personal, and interpersonal development of Ithaca College students by providing short-term individual, group, and relationship counseling, crisis intervention, educational programs to the campus community, and consultation for faculty, staff, parents, and students. Their team of licensed and licensed-eligible professionals value inclusivity, and they are dedicated to creating a diverse, accessible, and welcoming environment that is safe and comfortable for all those they serve and with whom they interact. Staff in the office will answer questions by phone at 607-274-3136; please leave a voicemail if you do not reach a live person. You can also reach the office via email at counseling@ithaca.edu.

In the event I suspect you need additional support, expect that I will express my concerns (and the reasons for them) to you and remind you of resources (e.g., CAPS, Health Center, Chaplains, etc.) that might be helpful. It is not my intention to know the details of what might be bothering you, but simply to let you know I am concerned and that help, if needed, is available.

Getting help is a smart and courageous thing to do for yourself and for your loved ones.

Ithaca College Statement on Diversity

Ithaca College values diversity because it enriches our community and the myriad experiences that characterize an Ithaca College education. Diversity encompasses multiple dimensions, including but not limited to race, culture, nationality, ethnicity, religion, ideas, beliefs, geographic origin, class, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity and expression, disability, and age. We are dedicated to addressing current and past injustices and promoting excellence and equity. Ithaca College continually strives to build an inclusive and welcoming community of individuals with diverse talents and skills from a multitude of backgrounds who are committed to civility, mutual respect, social justice, and the free and open exchange of ideas. We commit ourselves to change, growth, and action that embrace diversity as an integral part of the educational experience and of the community we create. Please learn more about Ithaca College's commitments:

https://www.ithaca.edu/diversity-and-inclusion/diversity-statement

Names and Pronouns

Everyone can choose to be addressed by their chosen name and pronoun. The class roster includes the student's legal first name, unless one has already designated their preferred first name with the Registrar's office. Please be advised that pronouns are not indicated on rosters, so you will be invited to indicate the pronoun you want to use when asked to share your name at our first lesson. A student's chosen name and pronoun will be respected in my classroom by everyone at all times.

Health and Safety

The health and safety of our entire campus community are important to us. For this reason, please know that I will expect that we all follow the most current health and safety guidance from the College (https://www.ithaca.edu/covid-health-safety), knowing that it might change, in accordance with local or national guidance, during the semester.

In our class, please observe the following protocols:

- Before you leave your residence to access campus, complete the electronic daily screening. If
 it indicates that you should not be interacting with the campus community, please
 demonstrate respect for others by remaining in your residential room, residential apartment,
 or your off-campus housing and refraining from interacting with campus. If you are
 experiencing symptoms, please reach out to Hammond Health Center at 607-274-3177 to
 determine if COVID-19 testing might be needed.
- 2. If you are cleared to access campus, be prepared to **show your IC Health Badge** on your electronic device when you arrive at our classroom.
- 3. Indoors, wear a face covering that appropriately covers both your nose and mouth, regardless of your COVID-19 vaccination status. Have a backup face covering available with you at all times in case it is needed. Please pay close attention to guidance regarding wearing a face covering as this may change throughout the semester.
- 4. Please **refrain from eating in the classroom**. Eating in class is only permitted if you have a medical reason for doing so. If you must drink, please do so quickly, and replace your face covering immediately.
- 5. **It is okay to stay home**. I ask that you email me as soon as possible if you are unable to attend class. This class does not offer dual instruction. However, I will work with you to identify alternative ways to make up missed work. Please see the attendance policy section of this syllabus for more information on class attendance and how we can work together if you must miss class due to illness.

Composition Projects for 2021-22
Fall:
Spring:

Dr. Evis Sammoutis – F2021 Syllabus for MUTH 46500